
COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
 

 

May 14, 2025 
7:00 PM at City of Taylor Mill Municipal Building (5225 Taylor Mill Road) 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Commissioner Kreimborg 
 

MINUTES:  Approval of Minutes from April 9, 2025, Commission Meeting 

  Approval of Minutes from April 23, 2025, Caucus Meeting 
 

GUESTS:   
   

RESIDENT COMMENTS: Residents shall sign in before the meeting and will have five (5) minutes to 

address the commission. 
 

LEGISLATION: 
Ordinance 408 (First Reading) – Budget Amendment FY24-25 
Ordinance 409 (First Reading) – Budget Adoption FY25-26 
Ordinance 410 (First Reading) – Personnel Pay Classification 
Ordinance 411 (First Reading) – Codification of Ordinances 
Municipal Order 168 – Joint Code Enforcement Board Appointment – Roger Braden 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   
   

NEW BUSINESS:  
Selection of Solid Waste Bid FY26 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  City Administrator  Legal Counsel  

     City Treasurer   Parks and Recreation 
     Engineering   Police 
     Fire    Public Works 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: The next Caucus Meeting will be on Wed., May 28, 2025 at 10 a.m.  

The next Commission Meeting will be on Wed., June 11, 2025, at 7 p.m. 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fri.-Sat., May 23-24, 2025  Community Yard Sale 
Tuesday, June 3, 2025   Tasty Tuesday Kicks off with Wildside Experience 
Tuesday, June 10, 2025  Tasty Tuesday with Lasang Pinoy Filipino  
Saturday, June 14, 2025  Shred Event at Pride Park RAINDATE 9AM to 12PM 
Tuesday, June 17, 2025  Tasty Tuesday with KP’s Sweets and Eats  
Wednesday, June 18, 2025  Free Concert at Pride Park featuring Derek Alan Band 
Wednesday, June 24, 2025  Tasty Tuesday with Texas Joe  
Tuesday, July 1, 2025   Tasty Tuesday with Wildside Experience 
Tuesday, July 8, 2025   Tasty Tuesday with Lasang Pinoy Filipino  
Tuesday, July 15, 2025   Tasty Tuesday with KP’s Sweets & Eats 
Wednesday, July 16, 2025  Free Concert at Pride Park featuring Swan 
Tuesday, July 22, 2025   Tasty Tuesday with Kona Ice  
Tuesday, July 29, 2025   Tasty Tuesday with Marty’s Waffles  
Wednesday, July 30, 2025  Free Concert at Pride Park featuring Doghouse 
Tuesday, August 5, 2025  Tasty Tuesday with Lasang Pinoy-Filipino  
Tuesday, August 12, 2025  Tasty Tuesday with KP’s Sweets and Eats  
Tuesday, August 19, 2025  Tasty Tuesday with Kona Ice  
Fri.-Sat., August 29-30, 2025  Community Yard Sale 
Friday, September 5, 2025  Family Campout in Pride Park 5 PM 
Sat., September 13, 2025  Concert: String Theory 
 

• Tasty Tuesday Events are at Pride Park between 5PM – 8PM 

• Concert Events are at Pride Park between 7PM – 9PM 



 
 

MINUTES 



1 
 

Min040925 

 
City of Taylor Mill 

COMMISSION MEETING 
Wednesday, April 9, 2025 

 

CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME: 

Mayor Bell called the meeting to order at 6:59 p.m. and welcomed those in attendance. 
Mayor Daniel L. Bell, Commissioner Caroline Braden, Commissioner Mark Kreimborg, 
Commissioner Rose Merritt, Commissioner Dan Murray, City Administrative Officer Brian 
Haney, and City Attorney Jack Gatlin were in attendance.  

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Commissioner Caroline Braden led the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
March 12, 2025, Commission Meeting 
 

Mayor Bell called for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 12, 2025 
Commission Meeting. Commissioner Merritt made the motion, which was seconded by 
Commissioner Kreimborg. The Clerk conducted a roll call, and the Commission unanimously in 
favor.  

MOTION PASSED 

March 24, 2025, Caucus Meeting 
 

Mayor Bell called for a motion to approve the minutes of the March 24, 2025, Caucus 
Meeting Minutes. Commissioner Murray proposed the motion, with a second from Commissioner 
Braden. The Clerk called the roll, and the Commission approved it with unanimous consent.  

MOTION PASSED 

 Mayor Bell invited the public to step forward to share their concerns. Residents Leslie 
Kroger, Donna & Kenneth Strinko, Nathan & Emily Chick addressed the Commission regarding 
the flooding that occurred on a portion of West Grand and Church Street. They requested 
information regarding FEMA assistance, the emergency declaration, help obtaining a dumpster, 
support for filling their swimming pool, and inquiries concerning soil health. 

  



2 
 

LEGISLATION:   

Ordinance 405 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, IN KENTON COUNTY, KENTUCKY, 
CLARIFYING THE ROLE OF COMMISSIONERS RELATED TO DEPARTMENT HEADS 
AND AMENDING SECTIONS 32.02 AND 32.04 OF THE TAYLOR MILL CODE OF 
ORDINANCES AND TAYLOR MILL ORDINANCE 1-1-86. 

 
 City of Attorney Jack Gatlin presented the second reading of Ordinance 405, which seeks to 
rectify conflicting legislation regarding the Commissioner’s supervision of department heads. Mayor 
Bell requested a motion to approve Ordinance 405 to clarify the duties of liaisons and the CAO to 
Department Heads. Commissioner Kreimborg moved to approve, with a second from 
Commissioner Braden. The Clerk conducted a roll call, and the Commission unanimously voted 
in favor. 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ordinance 407 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, IN KENTON COUNTY, KENTUCKY, 
AMENDING SECTION 50.99 (ORDINANCE 45 (9-9-92), RELATED TO FINES ASSESSED 
FOR IMPROPERLY STORED GARBAGE 
 
 City of Attorney Jack Gatlin presented the second reading of Ordinance 407, which seeks to 
amend Section 50.99 of Ordinance 45 nuisance penalty fine amounts. Mayor Bell requested a motion 
to approve Ordinance 407 to amend the fines for improperly stored garbage. Commissioner Merritt 
moved to approve, with a second from Commissioner Murray. The Clerk conducted a roll call, 
and the Commission unanimously voted in favor. 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Municipal Order 167 
 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, IN KENTON COUNTY, 
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY, DECLARING A STATE OF EMERGENCY  
 
 City Attorney Jack Gatlin provided the reading of Municipal Order 167 to declare a local 
state emergency for the flood that occurred in April 2025. Mayor Bell requested a motion to 
approve Municipal Order 167 to declare a state of emergency. Commissioner Kreimborg moved 
to approve, with a second from Commissioner Braden. The Clerk conducted a roll call, and the 
Commission unanimously voted in favor. 
 
 
  



3 
 

Resolution 391 
 
 City of Attorney Jack Gatlin provided the reading of Resolution 391. Mayor Bell called for 
a motion to approve Resolution 391 to adopt and approve the execution of a Municipal Road Aid 
Cooperative Agreement for FY25- 26. Commissioner Merritt made a motion, with a second from 
Commissioner Murray. The Clerk conducted a roll call, and the Commission voted unanimously in 
favor. 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
Proclamation 
 
 City Attorney Jack Gatlin presented the Proclamation for Autism Acceptance Month. 
Mayor Bell proposed a motion, which was seconded by Commissioner Kreimborg. The Clerk 
conducted a roll call, and the Commission voted unanimously in support. 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None 

NEW BUSINESS:  

 City Administrator Brian Haney sought the Commission’s to approval for the Verdantas 
(formerly CT Consultants) Contract Proposal for the Locust Pike Sewer Study. This study will 
be fully funded by the state via the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority, ensuring the city is 
reimbursed for all related expenses. Mayor Bell called for a motion to approve the study. 
Commissioner Braden made the motion, and Commissioner Murray seconded. The Clerk 
conducted a roll call, and the Commission unanimously approved the request.  

MOTION PASSED 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
 The Commission reviewed reports from the following staff members, including the City 
Administrator, Treasurer, Fire/EMS, Legal Counsel, Parks and Recreation, Public Works, and 
Police.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
 Mayor Bell requested the Commission to go into an Executive Session under 81.810(1)(c) 
to discuss proposed or pending litigation. Commissioner Merritt made a motion for the 
Commission to go into Executive Session, which was seconded by Commissioner Kreimborg. The 
Clerk conducted a roll call, and the Commission unanimously approved the request to proceed into 
Executive Session. 
 

MOTION PASSED  



4 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
 The Commission went into Executive Session at 7:32 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Bell called for a motion to close the Executive Session. Commissioner Merritt so 
moved, with a second from Commissioner Braden to close the Executive Session. The motion 
passed with unanimous approval. 
 
 Mayor Bell called the meeting back to order at 8:09 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Bell requested a motion to adjourn. 
Commissioner Murray made the motion to adjourn, which was seconded by Commissioner 
Merritt. The motion was approved unanimously by the Commission through a voice call vote, and 
the meeting concluded at 8:10 pm. 

                                                                                                                      MOTION PASSED 

The next Commission Meeting will be on Wednesday, May 14, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. at the 
City of Taylor Mill Municipal Building located at 5225 Taylor Mill Road. 

APPROVED: 

 
______________________________ 
Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 
_________________________________ 
Kristy Webb, City Clerk  
Date: _____________________ 



1 
 

Min042325 

 

City of Taylor Mill 

CAUCUS MEETING 

Wednesday, April 23, 2025 

 

CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME: 

Mayor Bell called the meeting to order at 10:001 a.m. and welcomed those in attendance. 

Mayor Daniel L. Bell, Commissioner Caroline Braden, Commissioner Mark Kreimborg, 

Commissioner Rose Merritt, Commissioner Dan Murray, City Administrative Officer Brian 

Haney, and City Attorney Jack Gatlin were in attendance.  

GUESTS: 

Police Chief James Mills addressed the commission, reviewing his PowerPoint 

presentation and detailing his budget request for the Police Department. 

The CAO presented the Public Works budget request on behalf of Public Works Director 

Jerry Jump. 

City Clerk/Event Coordinator Kristy Webb highlighted the budget request for Community 

Events. 

Fire Chief General Fernbach delivered a PowerPoint presentation to the Commission, to 

discuss his budget request and its necessity. Chief Fernbach also announced his plan to retire on 

June 30, 2025. 

Commissioner Dan Murray stepped out of the meeting at 11:58 a.m. and returned at 12:03 

p.m. 

Commissioner Merritt stepped out at 11:58 a.m. and returned at 12:00 p.m. 

DISCUSSIONS: 

CAO and Commission discussed the budget requests and the budget for FY25-26. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Bell requested for a motion to adjourn. 

Commissioner Merritt made the motion, which was seconded by Commissioner Kreimborg to 

close the caucus meeting. The motion was approved unanimously by the Commission through a 

voice call vote, concluding the meeting at 12:11 p.m. 

MOTION PASSED 



2 
 

The next Commission Meeting will be Wednesday, May 14, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. at the City 

of Taylor Mill Municipal Building located at 5225 Taylor Mill Road. 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________ 

Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

 

_________________________________ 

Kristy Webb, City Clerk  

Date: _____________________ 



 
 

LEGISLATION 



 

 
MUNICIPAL ORDER NO. 168 (05-14-25) 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON 

COUNTY, KENTUCKY APPROVING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF 

ROGER BRADEN AS A MEMBER OF THE KENTON COUNTY JOINT 

CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD FOR THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Taylor Mill is a participating member of the Kenton County 

Joint Codes Enforcement Board (KCJCEB) that was established pursuant to the authority of 

K.R.S. 65.8808 and 65.8811 through an inter-local agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of K.R.S. 65.8811, that the inter-local 

agreement provides that the board shall be composed of a representative of each participating 

member in the KCJCEB, who shall be appointed by the executive authority with the approval of 

the legislative body thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the members of the KCJCEB for the City of Taylor Mill have to be 

appointed by the City Commission of the Mayor because the City of Taylor Mill is organized 

and operated pursuant to the Commission form of government pursuant to K.R.S. 83A.140, in 

which all of the legislative, executive and administrative authority of the City is vested in and 

exercised by the City Commission instead of being divided between the mayor and legislative 

body of the City; and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.0 Commission Approval of Proposed Appointments 

 Mr. Roger Braden is hereby re-appointed as the representative of the City of Taylor Mill 

on the Kenton County Joint Codes Enforcement Board for terms that expire at midnight on the 

evening of April 27, 2027 and a successor is appointed and qualified. 

 

Section 2.0 Severability 

The provisions of this Municipal Order are severable; and the invalidity of any provision 

of this municipal order shall not affect the validity of any other provision thereof; and such other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect as long as they remain valid in the absence of 

those provisions determined to be invalid.   

 

Section 3.0 Repeal of Conflicting Provisions 

All Municipal Orders or parts of Municipal Orders in conflict with the provisions of this 

Municipal Order are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.   

 

Section 4.0 Effective Date 

This Municipal Order shall be effective as soon as possible according to law.  
 

Signed this 14th day of May 2025 by the City of Taylor Mill, Kenton County, Kentucky.  
  
  

       

 

By: ____________________________  

       Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

 



 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________  

Kristy Webb, City Clerk 
 

Date: ______________________  

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 408 (06-11-2025) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON 

COUNTY, KENTUCKY, AMENDING TAYLOR MILL ORDINANCE NO. 

404 (03-12-2025) AND THE BUDGET ADOPTED THEREBY FOR THE 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 

2024 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2025. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.0 — Amendments     

The budget for the City of Taylor Mill for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2024 
and ending June 30, 2025, adopted by Taylor Mill Ordinance No. 404 (03-12-25) is hereby 
amended as indicated in the budget identified as Schedule A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof by reference, with the text being added indicated by a single solid line beneath them 
and the words being removed marked at the beginning with an opening bracket and at the 
end with a closing bracket and the text between them stricken through with a solid line, as 
required by K.R.S. 83A.060(3); and during the remainder of the fiscal year which began on 
July 1, 2024 and ends on June 30, 2025, the City of Taylor shall operate and be operated 
pursuant thereto; and no monies shall be expended by or on behalf of the City of Taylor Mill 
except in accordance therewith; and no single appropriation or expenditure in accordance 
therewith shall exceed the sum of Two Thousand, Five Hundred ($2,500.00) Dollars without 
prior approval of the Taylor Mill City Commission therefore.  

Section 2.0 — Provisions Severable 

The provisions of this ordinance are severable; and the invalidity of any provision of this 

ordinance shall not affect the validity of any other provisions thereof; and such other provisions 

shall remain in full force and effect as long as they remain valid in the absence of those provisions 

determined to be invalid. 

Section 3.0 — Conflicting Ordinances Repealed 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4.0 — Effective Date  

This ordinance shall be effective as soon as possible according to law. 

Section 5.0 — Publication  

 

This ordinance shall be published in summary pursuant to K.R.S. 83A.060 (9). 

 

 

  



 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY 

 

 

By: ____________________________  

       Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________  

Kristy Webb, City Clerk 
 

Date: ______________________  

 

 

First Reading: 05/14/2025 

Second Reading: _____________ 

Publication: _________________ 

 





Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL 

ORDINANCE NO. 409 (06-11-25) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON 

COUNTY, KENTUCKY, ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 

TAYLOR MILL PURSUANT TO K.R.S. 91A.030 (10) FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2024, AND ENDING ON JUNE 30, 2025, AND 

PROVIDING THAT NO MONIES SHALL BE EXPENDED BY OR ON 

BEHALF OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE 

THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING THAT NO SINGLE APPROPRIATION 

AND EXPENDITURE IN ACCORDANCE THEREWITH SHALL EXCEED 

THE SUM OF $2,500.00 WITHOUT THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE 

TAYLOR MILL COMMISSION THEREFOR. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, IN KENTON COUNTY 

KENTUCKY, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.0 — Budget Adoption 

Pursuant to the requirement of K.R.S. 91A.030 (10) the City of Taylor Mill shall 

during the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2025, and ending on June 30, 2026, operate and be 

operated pursuant to the budget attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference , and no 

monies shall be expended by or on behalf of the City of Taylor Mill except in accordance 

therewith, and no single appropriation and expenditure in accordance therewith shall exceed 

the sum of $2,500.00 without prior approval of the Taylor Mill Commission therefor.  

Section 2.0 — Provisions Severable 

The provisions of this ordinance are severable; and the invalidity of any provision of this 

ordinance shall not affect the validity of any other provisions thereof; and such other provisions 

shall remain in full force and effect as long as they remain valid in the absence of those provisions 

determined to be invalid. 

Section 3.0 — Conflicting Ordinances Repealed 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4.0 — Effective Date  

This ordinance shall be effective as soon as possible according to law. 

Section 5.0 — Publication  

This ordinance shall be published in summary pursuant to K.R.S. 83A.060 (9).    



Page 2 of 2 

 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY 

 

 

By: ____________________________  

       Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________  

Kristy Webb, City Clerk 
 

Date: ______________________  

 

 

First Reading: 05/14/2025 

Second Reading: _____________ 

Publication: _________________ 

 

 





CITY OF TAYLOR MILL 

ORDINANCE NO. 410 (06-11-25) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON 

COUNTY, KENTUCKY, WHICH ENACTS A PERSONNEL AND PAY 

CLASSIFICATION PLAN PURSUANT TO KRS 83A.070(3)  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN 

KENTON COUNTY, KENTUCKY AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Taylor Mill maintains job descriptions and a pay scale for its 

employees effective July 1, 2024. 

 WHEREAS, KRS 83A.070 requires the legislative body of each city to adopt by 

ordinance personnel and pay classification plan, it is hereby ordained as follows: 

SECTION I 

That the amended Personnel and Pay Classification Plan attached hereto and marked as 

Exhibit “A”, set forth the job title and pay scale for each employment position of the city of 

Taylor Mill, which have been developed and authorized in accordance with the City’s annual 

budget previously adopted by ordinance.  

SECTION II 

The provisions of this ordinance are severable; and the invalidity of any provision of this 

ordinance shall not affect the validity of any other provision thereof; and such other provisions 

shall remain in full force and effect as long as they remain valid in the absence of those 

provisions determined to be invalid. 

SECTION III 

All ordinances or parts in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION IV 

This ordinance shall be effective as soon as possible according to law. 

SECTION V 

This ordinance shall be published in summary pursuant to KRS 83A.060(9). 

 



CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY 

 

 

By: ____________________________  

       Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________  

Kristy Webb, City Clerk 
 

Date: ______________________  

 

 

First Reading: 05/14/2025 

Second Reading: _____________ 

Publication: _________________ 

 



MIN MAX

A City Administrator 85,000.00$   135,000.00$   

B Police Chief; Fire Chief 77,000.00$   105,000.00$   

C

Treasurer; Dir. Public 

Works; Asst. Police Chief; 

Asst. Fire Chief 65,000.00$   95,500.00$      

D Captain, Fire Department 47,500.00$   63,250.00$      

E  

Police Sergeant; FD 

Lieutenant 57,430.00$   85,700.00$      

F

Police 

Specialist/Detective; 

Police Patrol Officer; 

FF/Medic 49,325.00$   82,350.00$      

G Public Works Laborer 43,250.00$   69,030.00$      

H City Clerk 45,320.00$   73,235.00$      

I Police Recruit 46,532.00$   50,100.00$      

J Police Clerk 38,000.00$   55,720.00$      

K FF/Medic Part Time 19.00$            26.00$               

L

Parks/Public Works Part  

Time 17.00$            22.00$               

M FF/EMT Part Time 17.00$            25.00$               

EXHIBIT A



 
 

TREASURER 

REPORT 






























	2025.05.14 Agenda 14May2025
	MINUTES Divider
	2025.04.09 Commission Meeting Minutes 9April2025
	2025.04.23 Caucus Meeting Minutes 23April2025
	LEGISLATION Divider
	Municipal Order 168 - Joint Code Enforcement Board Appointment
	Ordinance 408 - Budget Amendment with attachment
	Ordinance 408 - Budget Amendment
	Ordinance 408 Budget Amendment Attachment

	Ordinance 409 - Budget Adoption FY25-26 with attachment
	Ordinance 409 - Budget Adoption FY25-26
	Ordinance 409 Budget Adoption FY25-26 attachment

	Ordinance 410 - Personnel Pay Classification with attachment
	Ordinance 410 - Personnel Pay Classification
	Ord 410 Pay Scale Ordinance Attachment A
	Sheet1


	TREASURER Divider
	Treasurer - Monthly Report May 2025

